
8 December 2014 Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 

 
AGENDA 

Henderson City Council Regular Meeting 
Monday 8 December 2014, 6:00 p.m. 

R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 
134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 
 

 
Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 

 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Jr.  
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 

 
Councilmember Brenda Peace-Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Fearldine A. Simmons 
Councilmember George M. Daye 
 

City Officials 
Edward A. Wyatt, Interim City Manager 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 

 
III. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
IV. OPENING REMARKS 

 
In order to provide for the highest standards of ethical behavior and Transparency in Governance 
as well as provide for good and open government, the City Council has approved Core Values 
regarding Ethical Behavior1 and Transparency in Governance2.  The Mayor now inquires as to 
whether any Council Member knows of any conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with 
respect to matters before the City Council.  If any Council Members knows of a conflict of 
interest, or appearance of conflict, please state so at this time. 
 

                                                 
1 Core Value 4:  Ethical Behavior:  We value the public trust and will perform our duties and 
responsibilities with the highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism. 
 
2 Core Value 10:  Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the governance 
and operations of the City. 
 



8 December 2014 Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 
 

V. ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
a) 24 November 2014 Short Regular Meeting and Work Session.  [See Notebook Tab 1] 
 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Citizens may only speak on Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to address 
the Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of 
the meeting.  The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, 
come forward to the podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident.  
Please review the Citizen Comment Guidelines that are provided below.3 
 

VIII. OLD BUSINESS 
 
a) Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 14-92, Authorizing the Execution of a 

Contract with I. Kruger, Inc. to Perform an Actiflo-Carb Pilot Study at Kerr Lake Regional 
Water Plant and 2) Ordinance 14-07 FY15 Budget Amendment #15, Authorizing Transfer of 
Contingency Funds for Above Mentioned Study. (CAF 14-125)  [See Notebook Tab 2] 

 
● Resolution 14-92 
● Ordinance 14-07 

 
IX. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 a) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-96, Adopting the KLRWS 2012 Local 

Water Supply Plan.  (CAF 14-130)  [See Notebook Tab 3] 
 

  ● Resolution 14-96 

 b) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-78, Authorizing the Retirement of and 
Transfer of Ownership of K-9 Diesel to Police Sergeant Michael Overton. (CAF 14-
127) [See Notebook Tab 4] 

 
  ● Resolution 14-78 

                                                 
3 Citizen Comment Guidelines for Agenda Items 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters of concern to 
them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to three minutes 
should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the public hearing 
comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, if in order, be 
scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are to be directed to 
the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the public comment 
section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



8 December 2014 Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 
 
 c) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-04, Authorizing an RFP Soliciting a 

Commercial Real Estate Broker to Sell a City of Henderson, North Carolina Property. 
(CAF 14-129)  [See Notebook Tab 5] 

 
  ● Resolution 14-04 
 
 d) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-46, Authorizing the Mayor to Sign a 

Revised Supplemental Agreement with the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation (NCDOT) Relative to the Beckford Drive Widening Project on Behalf 
of the City (U-4916).  (CAF 14-132)  [See Notebook Tab 6] 

 
● Resolution 14-46 

 
 e) Consideration of Approval of: 1) Resolution 14-97, Amending the CH2MHill 

Contract for Additional Work, and 2) Ordinance 14-54, FY15 Budget Amendment 
#16, Authorizing the Appropriation of $33,000 from the Contingency Line to the 
Engineering Line of the Inter Basin Transfer (IBT) Budget for the Regional Water 
System. (CAF 14-131)  [See Notebook Tab 7] 

 
  ● Resolution 14-97 
  ● Ordinance 14-54 
 
 f) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 14-35, Amending Section 7-64.0 of the City 

Code Relative to Declaration as to Certain Intersections. (CAF 14-92-B) [See 
Notebook Tab 8] 

  
● Ordinance 14-35 

   
X. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on non-Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to 
address the Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the 
beginning of the meeting.  The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized 
by the Mayor, come forward to the podium, state your name, address and if you are a city 
resident.  Please review the Citizen Comment Guidelines that are provided below.4 

                                                 
4 Citizen Comment Guidelines for Non-Agenda Items 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters of concern to 
them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to three minutes 
should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the public hearing 
comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, if in order, be 
scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are to be directed to 
the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the public comment 
section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



8 December 2014 Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
 
 

XI. REPORTS 
 
a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem (No Report) 
b) Interim City Manager (No Report) 
c) City Attorney (No Report) 
d) City Clerk  

i. Meeting and Events Calendar [See Notebook Tab 9] 
ii. Fire Department Monthly Report 

XII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
a) Pursuant to G.S.§143-318.11 (a)(3) regarding Attorney/Client Privilege 

XIII. WORK SESSION 

a) Discussion Regarding Procedure for City Manager Appointment (No Attachments)  

XIV. ADJOURNMENT   



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 24 November 2014 Short Regular and Work Session Meeting  
Page 1 of 7 

City Council Minutes - DRAFT 
Short Regular Meeting and Work Session  

24 November 2014 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members Sara M. Coffey, D. Michael Rainey, 
Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, Fearldine A. Simmons, and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr. and Michael C. Inscoe  
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, City Attorney D. Rix Edwards, City Clerk Esther J. 
McCrackin, Finance Director Kathy Brafford, Engineering Director Clark Thomas, Development 
Services Director Corey Williams, Human Resources Director Cathy Brown, Recreation and 
Parks Director Kendrick Vann, Kerr Lake Regional Water Director Christy Lipscomb, Youth 
Services Director Donna Stearns,  Recreation Program Supervisor Greg Kelly, Community 
Service/Restitution Supervisor Shantel Hargrove, Aycock Recreation Center Director Crystal 
Allen and Recreation and Parks Administrative Assistant Pam Stevenson. 
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Interim City Manager Wyatt was unable to attend this meeting due to a prior, 
approved family commitment) 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 24 November 2014 Short Regular Meeting and Work Session of the Henderson City Council 
was called to order by Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. 
Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Council Member Brenda Peace-Jenkins led those in attendance in a prayer and the Pledge of 
Allegiance.   
 
WELCOME 
 
Mayor O’Geary expressed his pleasure to see so many staff and citizens present. 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 24 November 2014 Short Regular and Work Session Meeting  
Page 2 of 7 

ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda.  Council Member Rainey 
moved to accept the Agenda as presented.  Motion was seconded by Council Member Daye, and 
unanimously approved. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for any corrections to and/or approval of the minutes.  Council Member 
Peace-Jenkins moved the approval of the 10 November, 2014 Regular Meeting minutes, as 
presented. Motion seconded by Council Member Simmons, and unanimously approved.   
 
PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS 
 
Recognition of new Recreation and Parks Director:  Mayor O’Geary asked Human Resources 
Director Brown to introduce the newly appointed director of Recreation and Parks.  Ms. Brown 
introduced Mr. Kendrick Vann, who started with the City on 20 November 2014. 
 
Mr. Vann shared his appreciation to the City, Council, Staff and his family for what he called a 
great opportunity.  He recognized the departmental staff present and said he hopes to bring a new 
vision to the department.   
 
Mayor O’Geary said everyone is looking forward to the new direction and then asked Mr. 
Vann’s family to stand and be recognized. 
 
United Way Campaign:  - Youth Services Director Stearns is once again spearheading the 
campaign for the City.  She reviewed the campaign, and shared that 98% of donations made by 
City staff stay within Vance County.  Ms. Stearns added there are two new incentives to 
encourage donations this year and she has set a goal of at least $6,500, which was the amount 
donated last year.  In closing she thanked Council for its support.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Amending the Zoning Ordinance to Include 3.11 Elementary and Middle Schools as a 
Special Use in the I-2 (Industrial-Non Park District).  (Reference:  CAF 14-108); Ordinance 
14-53) 
 
Development Services Director Corey Williams explained a request was received to include 3.11 
Elementary and Middle Schools as a Special Use in the I-2 district.  Among other uses, the I-2 
allows day cares, nurseries, vocational schools and the Planning Board unanimously approved 
this recommendation during its 3 November 2014 meeting. 
 
Council Member Daeke asked about possible traffic issues.  Mr. Williams responded none were 
anticipated as harmony within the area is expected. 
 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 24 November 2014 Short Regular and Work Session Meeting  
Page 3 of 7 

 
With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary opened the Public Hearing by asking if anyone was 
present who wished to speak in favor of this amendment.   
 
 Attorney Jonathan Care, 1708 Peace Street.  Attorney Care represents a charter school 
looking for space to re-locate.  He said the DPI now requires larger tracts and potential sites are 
mainly located in the I-2 districts.  Attorney Care elaborated on Council Member Daeke’s 
question about traffic by saying school traffic would be different than shift traffic which should 
not cause a problem. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if anyone else was present who wished to speak in favor of this 
amendment.  No one came forward so Mayor O’Geary then asked if anyone was present who 
wished to speak in opposition to the amendment.  No one came forward. 
 
Mayor O’Geary then closed the Public Hearing and asked for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Rainey to approve Ordinance 14-53, Amending the 
Zoning Ordinance to Include 3.11 Elementary and Middle Schools as a Special Use in the I-2 
(Industrial-Non Park District).  Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey,  and APPROVED 
by the following vote:  YES: Coffey, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons and Daye. NO: 
None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  Kearney and Inscoe.  (See Ordinance Book 9, p 191) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that no citizen wished to speak to 
Council. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Amending Section 7-64.0 of the City Code Relative to Declaration as to Certain 
Intersections and Section 7-49, Declaration as to Certain Streets.  (Reference:  CAF 14-92-A; 
Ordinance 14-41) 
 
Assistant City Manager Frazier said these issues have all been discussed previously.  He then 
briefly reviewed the three suggested changes beginning with the intersection of South Park and 
Beckford Drive.  Staff discussed this traffic problem with the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation (DOT) which recommends that State ordinances be written to prohibit left hand 
movement to and from South Park Drive.  The DOT will install signage to reflect the new 
ordinance(s) once they are approved by the State Traffic Engineer.  
 
With no questions from Council Mr. Frazier moved to the request from the Fire Department to 
return Oak Street to two-way traffic.   This was a two-fold request to 1) allow fire trucks to enter 
the station from Oak Street and 2) to alleviate a safety issue as almost daily, someone drives the 
wrong way on Oak Street. Mr. Frazier asked that if approved by Council that this ordinance take 
effect on 1 December 2014 to allow time for signage changes. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 24 November 2014 Short Regular and Work Session Meeting  
Page 4 of 7 

The third part of this ordinance will change traffic flow on Belle Street from Garnett Street to 
Dorsey Avenue.  Mr. Frazier asked Engineering Director Thomas to explain further.  Mr. 
Thomas said currently there is a safety issue as the existing mail drop box creates cross lane 
travel and the potential for head-on collisions.  After discussions with Post Office representatives 
and local businesses, the mail box drop location will be changed on Belle Street along with 
becoming one-way.   
 
Council Member Daeke asked if there were any objections from local businesses.  Mr. Thomas 
said there were none.   
 
Council Member Coffey asked when the changes on Belle Street would take place.  Mr. Frazier 
responded not before January 1 due to the necessary notifications and possible weather problems.  
Ms. Coffey then asked about how people would be notified.  Mr. Frazier said with signage and 
assistance from the police department.  Mr. Thomas added possible diagrams within the Post 
Office to inform the public. 
 
Council Member Rainey asked if there would be any changes in the stop sign on Oak Street.  Mr. 
Frazier said the stop sign is on Pine Street and no changes are anticipated. 
 
There was no further discussion.  Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Coffey to approve Ordinance 14-41, Amending Section 7-
64.0 of the City Code Relative to Declaration as to Certain Intersections and Section 7-49, 
Declaration as to Certain Streets.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daeke, and 
APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Coffey, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons and 
Daye.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  Kearney and Inscoe.  (See Ordinance Book 9, 
p 167) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Employee Appreciation One-Time Salary Supplement.  (Reference: CAF 14-128; Resolution 
14-94) 
 
Assistant City Manager Frazier explained this is a request for Council to affirm its desire to 
award a one-time salary supplement to employees as has been done in years past.  He said on 
behalf of all the employees this supplement is greatly appreciated.  The FY14-15 budget 
included allocations for this supplement and, if approved, will be distributed during the 
employee luncheon in December.  
 
There were no other questions so Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Daeke to approve Resolution 14-94, Employee 
Appreciation One-Time Salary Supplement.  Motion seconded by Council Member Peace-
Jenkins, and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, 
Simmons, Daye and Coffey.  ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: Kearney and Inscoe.  (See Resolution 
Book 4, p 135) 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 24 November 2014 Short Regular and Work Session Meeting  
Page 5 of 7 

 
Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the Month of September 2014.  
(Reference: CAF 14-110)  Below are the tax releases and refunds which were found to be in 
order by the Finance Director for the month of October 2014.  

 
Oct 2014 Tax Releases & Refunds

Name Reason Tax Year Amount
Real & Personal Property
Releases
Resolution Trust Corporation Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2003 15.80$                  
Resolution Trust Corporation Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2004 16.58$                  
Resolution Trust Corporation Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2005 17.35$                  
Resolution Trust Corporation Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2006 17.35$                  
Greater Little Zion Holiness Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2007 264.99$                
Resolution Trust Corporation Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2007 192.35$                
Greater Little Zion Holiness Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2008 255.02$                
McGhee, Willie L. Jr., Heirs Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2008 108.76$                
Resolution Trust Corporation Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2008 21.92$                  
Greater Little Zion Holiness Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2009 290.04$                
McGhee, Willie L. Jr., Heirs Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2009 112.61$                
Resolution Trust Corporation Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2009 222.70$                 
Greater Little Zion Holiness Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2010 378.15$                
Harris, Jackie Personal Property Billed 2010 34.78$                  
McGhee, Willie L. Jr., Heirs Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2010 112.61$                
Resolution Trust Corporation Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2010 22.70$                  
Greater Little Zion Holiness Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2011 362.19$                
McGhee, Willie L. Jr., Heirs Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2011 112.68$                
Resolution Trust Corporation Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2011 22.68$                  
Greater Little Zion Holiness Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2012 362.19$                
McGhee, Willie L. Jr., Heirs Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2012 112.68$                

Resolution Trust Corporation
City Weed Abatement Lien Lost 
to Foreclosure

2012 220.00$                

Resolution Trust Corporation Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2012 22.68$                  
Greater Little Zion Holiness Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2013 383.86$                
McGhee, Willie L. Jr., Heirs Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2013 119.42$                
Resolution Trust Corporation Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2013 24.04$                  
Boyd, Johnnie Mitchell Senior Exemption 2014 821.31$                
Greater Little Zion Holiness Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2014 383.86$                
McGhee, Willie L. Jr., Heirs Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2014 119.42$                
Regeneration Development Taxes lost to Foreclosure 2014 24.04$                  
1/2 Price Outlet Personal Property Billed 2014 778.41$                

5,953.17$             

Real & Personal Property
Refunds None -$                     
Total R& P  Property Refunds -$                     
Total R&P Prop. Rel. & Ref. 5,953.17$             

Vehicle Releases
Ellis, Toni Sovonya Rekkia Pro-Rate 2013 12.79$                  

Total Vehicle Releases 12.79$                  

Vehicle Refunds
Richardson, James Arthur Pro-Rate 2013 25.56$                  
Wilson, James Edward Jr. Billed in NCVTS (DMV) 2013 49.20$                  

Total Vehicle Refunds 74.76$                  
Tot. Veh. Rel. & Ref. 87.55$                  

Total All Releases & Refunds 6,040.72$              



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 24 November 2014 Short Regular and Work Session Meeting  
Page 6 of 7 

 
There were no questions so Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Coffey to approve the Tax Releases and Refunds from 
Vance County for the Month of October 2014.   Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey, 
and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons, Daye 
and Coffey.  ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: Kearney and Inscoe.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that no citizen wished to speak to 
Council. 
 
REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem 
Mayor O’Geary wished everyone a very blessed Thanksgiving as did Mayor Pro-
Tem Rainey. 
 

b) City Manager   
As a reminder, Assistant City Manager Frazier said City Hall will be closed on 
Thursday and Friday for the Thanksgiving holiday.  However, staff will be on 
stand-by for any problems.  He mentioned leaf season is in full force and loose 
leaf pickup will end 15 January 2015. 
 

c) City Attorney (No Report) 
d) City Clerk (No Report) 

 
Mayor O’Geary called for a brief recess to allow time for citizens and staff to depart if they so 
wished before the start of the Work Session. 
 
WORK SESSION 
 
Authorizing the Execution of a Contract with I. Kruger, Inc., to Perform an Actiflo-Carb 
Pilot Study at Kerr Lark Regional Water Plant and Authorizing Transfer of Contingency 
Funds for Above Mentioned Study.(Reference:  CAF 14-125, Resolution 14-92, Ordinance 14-
07, FY 15 Budget Amendment #15) 
 
Assistant City Manager Frazier asked Kerr Lake Regional Water Director Lipscomb to present 
this item.  Ms. Lipscomb explained there is a new process that could potentially save major 
expense with the 20MGD project.  This process uses sand and carbon to reduce TOCs which are 
precursors to THM problems.  The cost of this three week pilot study is $13,000 which will be 
credited to the upgrade if it meets expectations and is approved by Council.  Ms. Lipscomb 
explained the process could allow for retrofitting current units. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 24 November 2014 Short Regular and Work Session Meeting  
Page 7 of 7 

Council Member Rainey asked how many gallons would be used in the study.  Ms. Lipscomb 
said approximately 5,000 and added the water will go through a mini plant which will be brought 
on-site by the company and placed where staff will have the opportunity to use the system.  She 
added Salisbury is currently using this system and she is in the process of setting up a time when 
she, her operators and the Engineering Director can all go to Salisbury to observe the system. 
 
Council Member Daeke asked about costs.  Ms. Lipscomb said she was unsure at this time. 
 
Mr. Frazier said the $13,000 is reasonable to help make a sound decision. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if Council would like to move forward with this project.  It was the 
consensus of Council to bring this to the next regular session for approval as follow:  YES: 
Coffey, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons and Daye. NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  
ABSENT:  Kearney and Inscoe.   
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if Council wished to add a work session to the 8 December Regular 
Meeting to begin discussions regarding the City Manager Search.  There was no disagreement 
and a Work Session will be added to the next meeting. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Rainey moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Peace-
Jenkins and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 6:57 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk 

 



CAF 14-125: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting:  24 November 2014 Work Session 
Page 1 of 16 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

2 December 2014 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: Ed Wyatt, Interim City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 14-125 

Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 14-92, Authorizing the Execution of a 
Contract with I. Kruger, Inc. to Perform an Actiflo-Carb Pilot Study at Kerr Lake 
Regional Water Plant and 2) Ordinance 14-07 FY 15 BA #15 Authorizing Transfer 
of Contingency Funds for Above Mentioned Study. 
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
 KSO 5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 

Systems. 
 
 
Recommendation:   
 

Approval of: 
 

 Resolution 14-92, Authorizing the Execution of a Contract with I. Kruger, Inc. to Perform an 
Actiflo-Carb Pilot Study at Kerr Lake Regional Water Plant; and 
 

 Ordinance 14-07, FY 15 BA #15 Authorizing Transfer of Contingency Funds for Above 
Mentioned Study. 

 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
The City is proceeding with obtaining the Interbasin Transfer Certificate and also preparing for 
design changes associated with previous plans and specs from the 20 MGD expansion. 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
 
Council Meeting: 8 Dec 14 Regular Meeting 



CAF 14-125: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting:  24 November 2014 Work Session 
Page 2 of 16 

 

With the new regulations that are being looked into by the EPA and State agencies, the 20 MGD 
upgrade will be the ideal time to look into new technologies, such as the Actiflo-Carb System, 
that will not only tackle the current treatment obstacles, but also the next generation of treatment 
challenges.  This may ultimately lead to less capital costs in expansion of the plant plus added 
benefits in requirements plus added benefits in meeting the Stage II Disinfection By-Products 
Regulations relative to the distribution. The cost of the study which would be performed by I. 
Kruger, Inc., is approximately $13,000. 
 
The transfer of funds from the 20 MGD Project Contingency account to the Engineering account 
will enable the funds to be expended for this pilot test at the Regional Water Plant.  
   
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Resolution 14-92 
2. Ordinance 14-07 



CAF 14-125: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting:  24 November 2014 Work Session 
Page 3 of 16 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   14-92 
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT WITH I. KRUGER, INC. TO 
PERFORM AN ACTIFLO-CARB PILOT STUDY AT KERR LAKE REGIONAL 

WATER PLANT (PLANT) 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of Henderson, North Carolina (Council) conducted its Annual Planning 
Retreat in February 2014, during which it identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and 
Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of the KSOs: KSO 5 - Reliable Infrastructure; and 
  
WHEREAS  the City of Henderson, North Carolina (City) and its partners, the City of Oxford, North 

Carolina and the County of Warren, North Carolina, are seeking issuance from the State of North 
Carolina (State) for an Interbasin Transfer Certificate as referenced in North Carolina General 
Statute § 143-215.22L; and 

 
WHEREAS in 2005, plans and specifications for expansion of Plant capacity were prepared and an 

Authorization to Construct was issued by the State; and 
 
WHEREAS, certain revisions to these plans and specifications are required to ensure compliance with 

current State and Federal codes and regulations; and 
 
WHEREAS, a pilot study will identify needed, and possibly cost-saving, design changes, some of which 

could allow the Plant to better comply with the United States Environmental Protection Agency 
Stage II Disinfection By-Products Rule; and 

 
WHEREAS, there are monies available in the existing  20 MGD (millions of gallons of water used each 

day) Project Contingency fund that may be used for the study.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL THAT IT DOES HEREBY authorize 

the Mayor or Interim City Manager to execute and sign the attached contract for I. Kruger, Inc. to 
perform a study at the Plant.   

 
The foregoing Resolution 14-92, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council Member **, 
and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was ***** on this the *** 
day of **** 2014:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 44, pp. **, CAF 14-125 

CAF 14-125 
Attachment #1 



CAF 14-125: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting:  24 November 2014 Work Session 
Page 4 of 16 

 

 

 Resolution 14-92 
 Attachment A 



CAF 14-125: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting:  24 November 2014 Work Session 
Page 5 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-125: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting:  24 November 2014 Work Session 
Page 6 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-125: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting:  24 November 2014 Work Session 
Page 7 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-125: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting:  24 November 2014 Work Session 
Page 8 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-125: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting:  24 November 2014 Work Session 
Page 9 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-125: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting:  24 November 2014 Work Session 
Page 10 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-125: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting:  24 November 2014 Work Session 
Page 11 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-125: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting:  24 November 2014 Work Session 
Page 12 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-125: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting:  24 November 2014 Work Session 
Page 13 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-125: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting:  24 November 2014 Work Session 
Page 14 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-125: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting:  24 November 2014 Work Session 
Page 15 of 16 

 

O R D I N A N C E   14-07 
 
 

FY 2014—2015 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 15 
AN AMENDMENT TO THE CIP REGIONAL WATER FUND  

AUTHORIZING TRANSFER OF CONTINGENCY FUNDS FOR THE  
KERR LAKE REGIONAL WATER PLANT 20 MGD EXPANSION 

PROJECT   
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson on 11 June 2014 adopted the FY14-15 

Annual Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital 

projects related to the Regional Water Fund, said fund referred to as 46: CIP Regional 
Fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved, and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

 

Original Current
Department Line Item Code Budget Budget Amendment Revised

935:  20 MGD Project NC Sales Tax Refund 46-935-411035 150,600$          175,300$           -$                175,300$             
935:  20 MGD Project Investments 46-935-444010 11,368$            37,254$             -$                37,254$               
935:  20 MGD Project Investments-Centura 46-935-444020 159,142$          159,142$           -$                159,142$             
935:  20 MGD Project Interest 2004 Raw Water Loan 46-935-444040 -$                 2,164$               2,164$                 
935:  20 MGD Project From Regional Water Fund 46-935-461064 801,704$          801,704$           -$                801,704$             
935:  20 MGD Project From CIP Regional 20 MGD 46-935-461066 -$                 42,000$             -$                42,000$               

   -$                 -$                  -$                -$                    
935: Total 1,122,814$       1,217,564$         -$                1,217,564$          

1,217,564$          
Original Current

Department Line Item Code Budget Budget Amendment Revised
935: 20 MGD Project, Created 10 April 2006 via Budget Ordinance, unnumbered and Ordinance 09-59

20 MGD Project Contingency 46-935-509900 -$                 52,750$             (13,000)$         39,750$               
20 MGD Project Planning / Design 46-935-510100 13,636$            13,636$             -$                13,636$               
20 MGD Project Legal / Administration 46-935-510200 60,622$            62,622$             -$                62,622$               
20 MGD Project Engineering 46-935-510301 1,048,556$       1,088,556$         13,000$          1,101,556$          

-$                 -$                  -$                -$                    
1,122,814$       1,217,564$         -$                1,217,564$          

1,217,564$          
Variance -$               

Total Revenues

Total Expenditures

This amendment serves to transfer $13,000 of contingency funds to the Engineering line item 
to pay for an Actiflo-Carb Pilot Study at the KLRWP to be performed by I. Kruger, Inc.

Notes:

This project was apparently re-started on 10 April 2006.  Only two appropriations have been 
made to it during this period of time as noted to the left.  Income exceeded the original 
estimate and has never been amended into the project.  This amendment has the effect of 
incorporating those funds and allocating same to project contingency.  Additionally, the 
transfer exceeded available dollars and it appears the former finance director became 
confused with the several line items transferring funds from Regional to 46 CIP.  This 
amendment corrects that $150,000 error.  Additionally, thre is $2,163.26 in unbudgeted 
revenues for 46-466-444-010 Interest (4002 Raw Water Loan) that has been sitting idle for 
apparently sometime.  This amendment allocates said money to the 935 20 MGD project as a 
revenue source for said project and for additional funding for project contingency.

Reference:
935: 20 MGD:  See Ordinance approved 10 April 2006, Minute Book 

**, p756 and Ordinance 09-59, Minute Book **, pp 655-656.

FUNDS:

CIP REGIONAL WATER FUND EXPENDITURES: 46

24 Nov 2014; Res 14-92; Ord 14-07; BA#15

Ordinance 14-07
FY 14-15 Budget Amendment # 15

CIP REGIONAL WATER FUND REVENUES: 46

46: CIP Regional Water

 

CAF 14-125 
Attachment #2 



CAF 14-125: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting:  24 November 2014 Work Session 
Page 16 of 16 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 14-07, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was **** on this the 24th day of November 2014:  YES:  . NO:  .   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .             

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p.**; CAF 14-125 
  
 
 
 
 
__________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA - CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 14-07  adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on ________________ 2014. This Ordinance is 
recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p.***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ****. 
_________________________ 
Esther McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  Edward A. Wyatt, Interim City Manager  
 



CAF 14-130: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 7 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________ 

25 November 2014 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor Pete O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: Ed Wyatt, Interim City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  14-130 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-96, Adopting the KLRWS 2012 Local 
Water Supply Plan. 
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item:  
 
 KSO-5: Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 14-96, Adopting the KLRWS 2012 Local Water Supply Plan. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
Kerr Lake Regional Water System is required by the State of North Carolina to update and have 
State approval of their Local Water Supply Plan every five years. In order for the KLRWS to be 
compliant with the requirements of NCGS §143-355(l), the governing body for the system must 
approve a resolution to adopt the plan. Because of the backlog at the State level, the review and 
approval letter from NCDENR for the 2012 Local Water Supply Plan was not received until 
November 6, 2014. 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Resolution 14-96  
2. NCDENR Approval Letter  

 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
 
 
Council Meeting: 8 Dec 14 Regular Meeting 



CAF 14-130: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 7 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 14-96 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ADOPTION  
OF KERR LAKE REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM (KLRWS) 2012 LOCAL WATER 

SUPPLY PLAN 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Henderson, North Carolina City Council (Council) identified eight Key 
Strategic Objectives (KSOs) at its 2014 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one KSO: KSO 5 - To Provide Reliable, Dependable and 

Environmental Compliant Infrastructure Systems; and 
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute §143-355(l) requires each unit of local government  

providing public water services or plans to provide such services shall either individually 
or together with other such units of local government, prepare and submit a Local Water 
Supply Plan (Plan); and  

 
WHEREAS, as required by the statute and in the interest of sound local planning, the Plan for 

KLRWS has been developed and is submitted to the Council for approval; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council finds the Plan, more fully discussed in the attachment to the 

Resolution, is in accordance with the provisions of North Carolina General Statute §143-
355(l) and that it will provide the appropriate guidance for the future management of 
water supplies for KLRWS and useful information to the North Carolina Department of 
Environment and Natural Resources for the development of a state water supply plan. 

 
NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL THAT IT DOES HEREBY 

approve the 2012 Local Water Supply Plan. 
  
The foregoing Resolution 14-96, introduced by Council Member and seconded by Council 
Member on this the 8th day of December 2014 and having been submitted to a roll call vote, was 
APPROVED by the following votes:  YES:  NO: ABSTAIN:  ABSENT:      
       ___________________________________ 

James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
_______________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 

CAF 14-130 
Attachment #1 



CAF 14-130: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 7 

 

Resolution 14-96 
Attachment A 



CAF 14-130: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 7 

 

 
  



CAF 14-130: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 7 

 

 
  



CAF 14-130: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 7 

 



CAF 14-130: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 7 

 

 

CAF 14-130 
Attachment #2 



CAF 14-78, 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

19 November 2014 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: Ed Wyatt, Interim City Manager 
RE: CAF:  14-127 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-78, Authorizing the Retirement of and 
Transfer of Ownership of K-9 Diesel to Police Sergeant Michael Overton.  

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation: 
 
  Approval of Resolution 14-78, Authorizing the Retirement of and Transfer of Ownership of 

K-9 Diesel to Police Sergeant Michael Overton.   
 
Executive Summary 
 
Chief Barrow has requested the retirement and transfer of ownership of K-9 Diesel to Police 
Sergeant Michael Overton.  Diesel is a 6 1/2 year old service dog purchased by the department in 
2009.   During his career, Diesel has been assigned to two (2) different canine handlers and has 
assisted with multiple criminal apprehensions and narcotic seizures. His original and most recent 
handler is Sergeant Michael Overton. 
 
Recently Sergeant Overton and Henderson Police Department Canine Program 
Coordinator/Trainer Lieutenant Gregory Williams consulted with Dr. Jeff Smith, DVM at West 
Hills Veterinary Centre regarding the health of Diesel. Dr. Smith has recommended that due to 
these health issues that K-9 Diesel be retired from his duties as a K-9 officer.  
 
NC Statute 160A-266(d) permits a municipality to authorize the disposition of personal property 
that is without value.  Chief Barrow is requesting that the Council approve the transfer of 
ownership of Diesel to his handler, Sergeant Michael Overton, so that Diesel can be cared for in 
his retirement from his service to the Henderson Police Department. This transfer would be made 
provided the handler signs a Hold Harmless Agreement with the City. 
 
Attachments: 
 1. Resolution 14-78 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
 
 
Council Meeting: 8 Dec 14 Regular Meeting 



CAF 14-78, 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 

RESOLUTION  14 -78  
 

AUTHORIZING THE RETIREMENT OF AND TRANSFER OF 
OWNERSHIP OF K-9 DIESEL  

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson, North Carolina Police Department (Department) purchased K-9 

Diesel in 2009 to assist law enforcement personnel; and 
 
WHEREAS, Diesel has served the Department well and is noted for his assistance in multiple 

criminal apprehensions and narcotic seizures; and 
 
WHEREAS, it has been recommended by Jeff Smith, DVM, that due to heath issues, Diesel be 

retired as a K-9 Officer with the Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sergeant Michael Overton of the Department is the handler for Diesel and has 

maintained him as part of the Henderson Police Department Canine Program. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Henderson, North Carolina  

that, in accordance with North Carolina General Statues §§160A-266 and 160A-267,  does 
hereby authorize the retirement of K-9 Diesel and authorizes Department Chief to effect 
the sale and transfer of ownership of Diesel to Police Sergeant Michael Overton, in his 
personal capacity, contingent on his execution of the Hold Harmless and Transfer 
Agreement being more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 14-78, upon motion of Council Member ************* and second 
by Council Member **********, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the 
following votes and was ******** on this the ____________ 2014:  YES:  .  NO  .  
 ABSTAIN:  .  ABSENT:         . 
 

_____________________________ 
 James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST:  
       
________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Legal Form: 
 
______________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 44,  p. ***. 
 
 

CAF 14-127 
Attachment #1 



CAF 14-78, 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Transfer of Ownership of Retired K-9 “Diesel” 
 

 Michael Overton, in his personal capacity, and on his behalf and on behalf of members of his 

family members, employees, agents or authorized representatives, agrees to become the owner of and take 

full responsibility as of __________, 2014, for the care and actions of K-9 Diesel, a canine purchased by 

the City of Henderson, North Carolina (City), used by the City Police Department (Department) for law 

enforcement purposes and being retired due for medical reasons.  Mr. Overton, on his behalf and on 

behalf of members of his family, members, employees, agents or authorized representatives, agrees to 

indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City and Department, as well as its agents and employees, from 

all suits and actions, and for any associated attorney’s fees, litigation cost and judgments involving the 

City and Department due to any loss, damage, or injury to either persons and property resulting from 

during his ownership of Diesel.  By this agreement, Mr. Overton agrees to provide food, shelter and 

medical care to Diesel for the rest of his natural life.  If, in the opinion of the Department Chief, adequate 

food, shelter and medical care is not being provided, the Department Chief may have Diesel examined by 

a DVM and, in his discretion, may take possession of Diesel.  Furthermore, should Mr. Overton, or his 

heirs and assigns, no longer wish to maintain and care for Diesel, Mr. Overton agrees to return Diesel to 

the Department Chief. 

 By Resolution 14-78, the Council for the City of Henderson, North Carolina authorized the 

Department Chief to effect the private sale of Diesel to Mr. Overton.  By these signatures, the Department 

Chief transfers ownership of Diesel to Mr. Overton and Mr. Overton assumes full responsibility for 

Diesel and agrees to the stipulations of this agreement. 

    

      CHIEF OF POLICE, CITY OF HENDERSON, NC   
By:  Michael Overton     By:  Marcus Barrow 
 
 
Signature: ______________________ Date: _____ Signature: __________________Date: _______ 
 

 

       
 

Resolution 14-78 
Attachment A 



CAF 14-129: 12 December 2014 Council Meeting  
Page 1 of 5 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

26 November 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: Edward A. Wyatt, Interim City Manager 
RE: CAF:  14-129 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-04, Authorizing an RFP Soliciting a 
Commercial Real Estate Broker to Sell a City of Henderson, North Carolina 
Property. 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 8:  Provide Financial Resourcing 

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 14-04, Authorizing an RFP Soliciting a Commercial Real Estate 

Broker to Sell a City of Henderson, North Carolina Property. 
 

Executive Summary 
 
During the Land Planning Committee meeting of 5 November 2014, members asked that an RFP 
be prepared for soliciting a commercial real estate broker to sell the First National Bank Building 
on Garnett Street, currently totally owned by the City.  The RFP is attached and with Council’s 
approval will be properly advertised.  The results will be brought before Council for 
consideration at the 26 January 2015 meeting. 
 
Enclosure: 
 
 1. Resolution 14-04 
 2. Request for Proposal 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
Council Meeting:  8 Dec 14 Regular Reg. Meeting 
 
 



CAF 14-129: 12 December 2014 Council Meeting  
Page 2 of 5 

 

R E S O L U T I O N  14-04 
 

AUTHORIZING AN RFP SOLICITING A COMMERCIAL 
REAL ESTATE BROKER TO SELL A CITY OF HENDERSON, 

NORTH CAROLINA PROPERTY 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 
2014 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows:  KSO 

8: Provide Financial Resourcing:  To provide sufficient funds for municipal operations 
and capital outlay necessary to meet the needs of citizens, customers and mandates of 
regulatory authorities; and 
 

WHEREAS, a Request for Proposal (RFP) will be sent out and advertised soliciting firms 
interested in assisting the city in selling the Former First National Bank building located 
at 213 South Garnett Street; and 
 

WHEREAS, the deadline for submission of an RFP will be 5:00 p.m. Monday, 12 January 2015. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

HENDERSON, that it authorizes proper advertisement of the RFP, being more fully 
articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution, to commercial real estate brokers to sell 
former First National Bank Building located at 213 South Garnett Street.   

 
 
The foregoing Resolution 14-04, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member *** and having been submitted to a roll call vote, received the following votes and was 
______________ on this the ___ day of __________ 2014:  YES: NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  
ABSENT: None. 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
_______________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 14-129: 12 December 2014 Council Meeting  
Page 3 of 5 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) – Soliciting a Commercial Real Estate 

Broker to Sell a City of Henderson, North Carolina Property 
 
The City of Henderson, through this RFP, is seeking a qualified commercial real estate broker in 
marketing and selling public land and/or commercial property to sell the 4,250 square foot 
former First National Bank building located at 213 South Garnett Street, Henderson, North 
Carolina. As of November 2014, the building and property have an assessed tax value of 
$329,412, and had an appraised market value of $60,000 in 2007.  There has been no recent 
appraisal. 
 
RFP Due Date:  Monday, January 12, 2015 
 
Point of Contact: 
 
The contact identified below is the sole point of contact regarding the RFP from the date of 
release of this RFP until selection of the successful proposer.  Submit written questions to: 
 
  Esther McCrackin 
  City Clerk 
  134 Rose Avenue (P.O. Box 1434) 
  Henderson, NC 27536 
  Tel: 252-430-5705 
  Email: emccrackin@ci.henderson.nc.us 
 
Background: 
 

The property commonly referred to as the old First National Bank is located on the southeast 
side of South Garnett Street between West Winder Street and Breckenridge Street. The total 
property area is approximately 0.114 acres (4,635 square foot) with no excess land. The subject 
property has 45 feet of frontage on South Garnett Street with average access and good 
visibility. A map of the property is included as ATTACHMENT A.  The property was 
originally built as a bank branch, which closed in 1985. The City of Henderson and Vance 
County acquired the building in 1991 but it  



CAF 14-129: 12 December 2014 Council Meeting  
Page 4 of 5 

 

remained empty until 1995 when the Historic Society was allowed to use the building as a 
museum.  The building is currently not on the National Register of Historic Places but it is 
contained within the Historic District that is on the Register.   The property is currently empty 
and solely owned by the City of Henderson. 

Property Profile: 
 

 Size/Space: The building is approximately 4,250 square foot; the land 0.11 acres 
(4,635 square foot).  Main entrance on South Garnett Street. 

 Existing Use: Currently vacant. 
 Year Built: 1921 
 Zoning: Business (B1) 
 Public Utilities Available 

 
In the event you wish to view the property prior to submitting your proposal, please call City 
Clerk Esther McCrackin to set up an appointment.  A 24 hour notice is required and must be 
done during normal working hours. 

Building Condition Audit: 
 

 In June of 2007, the City commissioned Entasis Designs, PLLC to prepare an audit of 
the building to determine its overall condition. The audit report identified a number of 
issues with the building, including structural deficiencies, heat and water damage, and 
damage that resulted from a fire in or around 1985. 

 The building and the property may have other defects and the building is classified as 
in poor condition. The purchaser of the property will be required to assume 
responsibility for inspecting the building and property and shall obtain the property 
"as-is". The purchaser will also be required to release and indemnify the City of 
Henderson for any claims relating to the condition of the building and property.  

Interest and Qualifications: 

 
Please provide a letter of interest from the prime firm, signed by the authorized and principal real 
estate professional intended to lead the effort. Provide additional supporting information 
establishing your firm's qualifications to conduct the work including the following: 
 

 Provide a general description of the prime real estate firm proposed to lead the effort. 
Describe the firm's history and qualifications to conduct the work described. 

 Identify any other firms and/or individuals proposed to make up your team. 
 Based on your understanding of the project, include an explanation of how this team will 

be organized and managed. 
 Please provide background resumes demonstrating the experience of key professionals 

making up the proposed team. Indicate the status of professional real estate licensing and 
other professional qualifications. 

 Describe successful projects of a similar nature completed by your team members. 



CAF 14-129: 12 December 2014 Council Meeting  
Page 5 of 5 

 

 Describe a project of reference including its location, financial outcomes, and supporting 
documents 

 Include your fee for commission and any costs related to the sale of the property. 

Interested parties should submit a copy of their proposal to The City of Henderson City Hall to 
the attention of Esther McCrackin, City Clerk either by mail, in person or electronically. 
Incomplete submittals and those that do not conform to these guidelines may not be considered.  

Acceptance/Rejection of Proposals 

The City reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals submitted, in whole or in 
part, and to waive any informalities or technicalities, which at the City’s discretion is 
determined to be in the best interests of the City.  Further, the City makes no representations 
that a contract will be awarded to any proposer responding to this request. The City expressly 
reserves the right to reject any and all proposals responding to this invitation without 
indicating any reasons for such rejection(s). 

The City reserves the right to postpone due dates and openings for its own convenience and to 
withdraw this solicitation at any time without prior notice. 

Selection Process 
 

Based on the proposals received, the City may select several potential firms to interview. Firms 
selected for an interview will be required to: 
 

 Create and present a market feasibility for the property and state opinion of value 
 Explain the marketing/sales approach and timeframe for sale 
 Highlight examples of similar types of properties and success record. 

Your firm will be judged based on the creativity of your sales and marketing approach, past 
record of accomplishment and/or former clients' recommendations, opinion on value and 
your fees for commission. It is our intent to select a commercial real-estate broker/firm by 
January 30, 2015. 



CAF 14-132: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 6 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

1 December 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: Ed Wyatt, Interim City Manager 
RE: CAF: 14-132 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-46, Authorizing the Mayor to Sign a Revised 
Supplemental Agreement with the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) 
Relative to the Beckford Drive Widening Project on Behalf of the City. (U-4916) 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure Systems. 

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 14-46, Authorizing the Mayor to Sign a Revised Supplemental Agreement 

with the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) Relative to the Beckford Drive 
Widening Project on Behalf of the City. (U-4916) 

 
Executive Summary 
 
The City Council authorized the Beckford Drive Widening Project in December 2008.  A municipal 
agreement was executed at that time and work began to complete the design. Work on the plans and specs 
are ongoing, but there has been a major delay in obtaining the remaining easements to which Council 
authorized condemnation.  Due to the timeframe that has elapsed, a supplemental agreement is necessary 
to extend the completion deadline to 31 December 2017. 
 
The revised timeline is to accept bids in March 2015 or earlier, and bring the recommended bid award to 
the City Council directly after that. This is contingent on NCDOT review and approval and receiving bids 
within the construction estimate.  Construction would then begin in late spring 2015. 
 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Resolution 14-46 
2. December 2008 Resolution 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 8 Dec 14 Reg. Meeting 



CAF 14-132: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 6 

 

RESOLUTION 14-46 
 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN A REVISED SUPPLEMENTAL 
AGREEMENT WITH THE NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION (NCDOT) RELATIVE TO THE BECKFORD DRIVE 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT ON BEHALF OF CITY (U-4916) 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (City) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 

at its 2014 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of the Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 5: 

To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure Systems; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council approved a Resolution in 2008 authorizing the 

Beckford Drive Improvements Project to proceed; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Municipal Agreement was executed between the City of Henderson and the North 

Carolina Department of Transportation prior to starting the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, there has been a major delay in obtaining all of the necessary easements; and 
 
WHEREAS, an extension is needed relative to the Municipal Agreement to complete the 

acquisition of easements and to complete construction. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE  CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

HENDERSON THAT IT DOES hereby authorize the Mayor to sign on behalf of the 
City, the Revised Supplemental Agreement with the NCDOT, said agreement being more 
fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 14-46, introduced by Council Member *** and seconded by Council 
Member *** on this the ** day of *** 2014 and having been submitted to a roll call vote, was 
*** by the following votes:  YES:  NO:  ABSTAIN:  ABSENT:       
      ___________________________________ 

James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 

CAF 14-132 
Attachment #1 



CAF 14-132: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 6 

 

 

Resolution 14-46 
Attachment A 



CAF 14-132: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 6 

 

 



CAF 14-132: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 6 

 

 



CAF 14-132: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 6 

 

 

CAF 14-132 
Attachment #2 



CAF 14-131: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 16 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
2 December 2014 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: Ed Wyatt, Interim City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 14-131 

Consideration of Approval of: 1) Resolution 14-97, Amending the CH2MHill 
 Contract for Additional Work, and: 2) Ordinance 14-54, FY 15 BA # 16 Authorizing 
 the Appropriation of $33,000 from the Contingency Line to the Engineering Line of 
 the Inter Basin Transfer (IBT) Budget for the Regional Water System. 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO-5:Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure System 
 KSO-8: Provide Financial Resourcing:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal 

Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and 
Mandates of Regulatory Authorities.  

 
Recommendation: 
 
Approval of: 
 
 Resolution 14-97, Amending the CH2MHill Contract for Additional Work 
 Ordinance 14-54, FY 15 BA # 16 Authorizing the Appropriation of $33,000 from the 

Contingency Line to the Engineering Line of the Inter Basin Transfer (IBT) Budget for the 
Regional Water System.  

 
 
Executive Summary 
 
CH2MHill has been working with the City for several years in obtaining the IBT Certificate. 
Resolution 14-97 amends the original contract to include Task Order #5 which includes the final 
preparation of the environmental assessment and associated documents which is required to 
secure said certificate. In conjunction with the changes to the Statute that were approved by the 
Legislature, the City is now in a position to obtain the IBT certificate in a shorter timeframe.  

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
 
 
Council Meeting:  8 Dec 2014 Regular Meeting 



CAF 14-131: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 16 

 

The total amount necessary to complete the contract with CH2MHill is $33,000 which includes 
$26,400 for the above documentation plus $6,600 for Public Relations support provided by 
Pioneer Strategies, Inc., which was presented to the KLRW Advisory Board. 
 
Ordinance 14-54 moves $33,000 from the Contingency Account to the Engineering line item in 
Regional Water to pay for the Inter basin Transfer Petition.  The funds were originally approved 
as a part of the FY15 budget process, at which time they were placed in contingency for future 
utilization. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution 14-97 
2. Ordinance 14-54 
3. 27 Oct 14 KLRW Advisory Board Minutes 



CAF 14-131: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 16 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
14-97 

 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE 

CONTRACT WITH CH2MHILL FOR IBT SERVICES FOR THE 
REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of Henderson, North Carolina (Council) conducted its Annual 

Planning Retreat in February 2014, during which it identified eight Key Strategic 
Objectives (KSO) and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses two of the KSOs: as follows: 

 
KSO-5: Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 
System. 
KSO-8: Provide Financial Resourcing:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal 
Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and 
Mandates of Regulatory Authorities. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has previously approved the acceptance of the Contract with 

CH2MHill for IBT services; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the contract with CH2MHill to complete the remaining 

tasks of the IBT process; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is recommended by the Kerr Lake Regional Water System to engage the firm of 

Pioneer Strategies, Inc. to help with the public relations support; and  
 
WHEREAS, Pioneer Strategies, Inc. will be paid in the amount of $6,000 directly by CH2MHill 

as a sub-consultant for Public Relations Support; and 
 
WHEREAS, Additional services are required in order to complete the IBT due to changes by 

DENR to the statute. 
 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY AUTHORIZE the execution of an Amendment to the Contract with 
CH2MHill for IBT services for the Regional Water System being more fully articulated 
in Attachment A to this resolution. 

 
 
 
 
 

CAF 14-131 
Attachment #1



CAF 14-131: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 16 

 

The foregoing Resolution 14-97, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member **, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
***** on this the *** day of **** 2014:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 43, pp. **, CAF 14-125 
        



CAF 14-131: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 16 

 

 

Resolution 14-97 
Attachment A 



CAF 14-131: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-131: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-131: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-131: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-131: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-131: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 16 

 

 



CAF 14-131: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 12 of 16 

 

O R D I N A N C E  14-54 
 

FY 2014-2015 BUDGET AMENDMENT #16 
AMENDING THE CIP REGIONAL WATER FUND  

TO TRANSFER CONTINGENCY FUNDS TO ENGINEERING IN THE  
CIP REGIONAL – IBT PROJECT 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 11 June 2014, adopted its 
FY 14-15 Operating Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital 

projects related to the regional water treatment system, said fund referred to as 46: CIP 
Regional Water Fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time, said amendment 
incorporated in this Ordinance.  

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 

CAF 14-131 
Attachment #2 



CAF 14-131: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 13 of 16 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FUND:

PROJECT:

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 26-Jan-04 Budget Amendment Revised

Investment Income 46-939-458100 -$             12$                -$                12$                            
Trans Fr: 64 Regional 46-937-461064 465,000$      383,988$        -$                383,988$                    
Trans Fr: 78 Regional Res 46-937-461065 -$             525,000$        -$                525,000$                    

-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 465,000$      909,000$        -$                909,000$                    
909,000$                    

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 26-Jan-04 Budget Amendment Revised

Professional Services 46-937-500400 -$             79,224$         -$                79,224$                      
Contingency 46-937-509900 60,000$        91,877$         (33,000)$         58,877$                      
Planning/Design 46-937-510100 405,000$      119,988$        -$                119,988$                    
Engineering 46-937-510301 -$             617,911$        33,000$          650,911$                    

-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 465,000$      909,000$        -$                909,000$                    
909,000$                    

Variance -$               

City Council Meeting 6/23/2008; BA #1 Amendment to transfer $150,000 from the Regional Water FY 08-09 operating budget to the 
IBT Budget to continue plans and study of the project.

City Council Meeting 6/14/2010; BA #3 Amendment to transfer $125,000 from the Regional Water FY 10-11 operating budget to the 
IBT Budget.  This $125,000 will remain in contingency until further contracts are authorized 
by the City Council.

City Council Meeting 6/27/2013; Ord 13-19, BA #1 
(effective 7/1/2013)

This amendment appropriates $271,224 from contingency; $240,000 to Engineering due to a 
contract with CH2MHill for continued engineering services regarding the IBT Project and 
$31,224 to Professional Services to cover the legal fees to be incurred by Poyner & Spruill, 
LLC for this project.
Interfund transfer of $10,000 from Engineering to Planning/Design to cover overage in the 
Planning/Design line item.

Amendment provides for the formal allocation of $38,000 provided in the FY 2014 budget to 
Fund 46.  The transfer line from Fund 64 to Fund 46 is shown as a memo reference only 
since it was approved in the budget adoption ordinance.  Since Fund 46 is a capital 
improvement project fund, it's budgetary appropriations are not considered in the routine 
annual budget adoption ordinance and are made separately and subsequent to the budget 
adoption.

City Council Meeting 2/28/2011; Ord 11-17; BA #35

City Council Meeting 6/13/2011; Ord 11-39, BA #1

Amendment provides for the formal allocation of $38,000 provided in the FY 2013 budget to 
Fund 46.  The transfer line from Fund 64 to Fund 46 is shown as a memo reference only 
since it was approved in the budget adoption ordinance.  Since Fund 46 is a capital 
improvement project fund, it's budgetary appropriations are not considered in the routine 
annual budget adoption ordinance and are made separately and subsequent to the budget 
adoption.

City Council Meeting 11/10/2008; BA #14

City Council Meeting 6/22/2009; BA #1

Amendment to "true up" the IBT project budget with the engineering contract.  Funds were 
initially budgeted in the contingency line item.
The FY 09/10 Budget Ordinance appropriates $100,000 from Regional Water to the CIP 
Regional Water IBT Project.  This $100,000 will remain in contingency until such time as the 
Council approves additional contract or project costs for the project.

City Council Meeting 7/13/2009; BA #2

1/10/2010

46: CIP - Regional

937: KLRWS Inter-Basin Transfer Permit FY 14-15 Budget Amendment #16

Project Budget Created: 26 January 2004
Amending Capital Project 46-937: KLRWS Inter-Basin Transfer Permit

REVENUES

Amendment appropriates $150,000 to the CIP Regional IBT Project.  Appropriations will be 
placed in the contingency line item until further contracts are authorized by the City Council.

Amendment to transfer $125,000 from Contingency to Engineering to help cover the costs of 
the contract with CH2MHill which was approved by the City Council on 9/27/2010.

City Council Meeting 7/9/2012; Ord 12-47; BA #1

EXPENDITURES

Reference: Notes:

City Council Meeting 6/27/2007; BA #1 Amendment to transfer $150,000 from the Regional Water FY 07-08 operating budget to the 
IBT Budget to continue plans and study of the project.

City Council Meeting 1/26/2004; BA #24 Amendment to establish a new project to obtain a new IBT (Interbasin Transfer) certificate as 
was required by the State.  Total project cost estimated to be $465,000. Revenue to come 
from Regional Reserve.

City Council Meeting 4/12/2004; BA #27 Amendment to decrease the Interbasin Transfer (Plan/Design) budget by $285,000 and 
contingencies by $60,000, for a total budget reduction of $345,000.  This was due to the 
Public Utilities Committee agreement on 3/22/2004 to allocate $120,000 for fiscal year 
2003/04 as a CIP Project for the work  related to obtaining an Interbasin Transfer Permit.  The 
reduction from revenue was obtained by reducing the appropriation from Regional Reserve.

City Council Meeting 4/10/2006; BA #30 Amendment to appropriate actual costs thus far for the IBT Project ($119,988).  The revenue 
was appropriated from Regional Water Reserves, however the actual money was never 
transferred from the Reserves.  This amendment was made for the purpose of "mak ing the 
transfer."  The project was to remain open until further review by the City Council.

 Council Meeting 1/13/2014; Ord 14-04, CAF 14-05; BA #20 Amendment to transfer $134,135 from Contingency to Engineering to help cover the costs of 
the contract with CH2MHill which was approved by the City Council on 9/27/2010.

 Council Meeting 09/8/2014; Ord 14-43, CAF 14-87; BA #8 Amendment provides for the formal allocation of $38,000 provided in the FY 2015 Budget to 
Fund 46.  The $38,000 is for on-going IBT expenses.

 Council Meeting 12/8/2014; Ord 14-54, CAF 14-131; BA #16 Amendment to transfer $33,000 from Contingency to Engineering to cover the costs 
associated with an amendment to the contract with CH2MHill which is going before Council 
for their approval on 12/8/2014.

Ordinance 14-54



CAF 14-131: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 14 of 16 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 14-54 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 8 day of December 2014:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  
**.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 43 p. ***; CAF 14-131 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 14-54 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on     December 2014 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 9, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of December 2014. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
 
 
   
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  Edward A. Wyatt, Interim City Manager 
 



CAF 14-131: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 15 of 16 

 

KLRWS ADVISORY BOARD 
Meeting Minutes-October 27, 2014 

 
 
Next meeting December 8, 2014 9:30AM, Henderson City Hall Conference Room 
 
 

I.    Welcome by Councilman Inscoe at 9:30am.  
II.    August 11, 2014 minutes were approved Motioned by Mr. Griffin seconded by Ms. 

Downey. 
III. Old Business-  

a. IBT update – CH2MHill representatives went over the upcoming timeline in 
order to have the IBT certificate by June 2015. There will be an Environmental 
Commission Meeting on November 12, 2014, at which time CH2MHill will update 
the Commission on the Environmental Assessment and answer any questions. 

IV. Reports- Christy Lipscomb went over the following reports 
a. Water Production and Partner Distribution –There are no issues with water 
production. 
b. KLRWS Financials –No questions 
c. Corp of Engineers Report – weekly report 
d. TTHM Results- Ms. Lipscomb indicated that Henderson will be doing their 
quarterly TTHM testing November 12, 2014. Mrs. Worth said that Macon 
Robinson asked that it be mentioned in the meeting that removal of organics in 
the beginning of the treatment process would be the optimal way to combat high 
TTHM levels. Ms. Lipscomb agreed that this was the most optimal way to treat 
and that Plant personnel were currently in the process of obtaining a pilot study 
for a new process to achieve this.  
e. Overview of Systems Meeting – October 30, 2014 will be the next meeting. 
Ms. Lipscomb indicated that the July 24, 2014 meeting was very productive and a 
great turnout from all systems. 

V. New Business  
a. Partner’s Concerns 

 Warren County –None 
 Oxford – None 

Kerr Lake Regional Water Advisory Committee 
Name P A Name P A 

Voting Members   Also Representing Members   

Frank Strickland, Oxford X  Frank  Frazier, Henderson X  
Ruby Downey, Warren County X  Clark Thomas, Henderson X  
Ray Griffin, Henderson X  Randy Hemann, Oxford X  
Mike Inscoe, Chairman, Henderson X  Amy Ratliff, Oxford X  
James O’Geary, Henderson X  Linda Worth, Warren County X  
   Ed Wyatt, Henderson X  
      

Regional Water Staff   Guests 
Clarissa Lipscomb, KLRWS X  Bill  Kreutzberger – CH2MHill 
   Jamie Robinson, CH2MHill 
   Danielle- Daily Dispatch 

CAF 14-131 
Attachment #3 



CAF 14-131: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 16 of 16 

 

 Henderson – Mr. Ed Wyatt was introduced as the Interim City 
Manager. The plans for the 20MGD upgrade are being reviewed for 
updating and are slated to be finished around the time the IBT 
certificate is obtained. Finance Director Brafford is looking into 
financing for the upgrade. 

VI. Next meeting will be December 8, 2014. The 2015 Meeting Schedule was handed 
out. 

VII. Adjournment –10:00am 
 



CAF 14-92-B: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting: 27 October 2014 Work Session 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

1 December 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: Ed Wyatt, Interim City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 14-92-B 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 14-35, Amending Section 7-64.0 of the City 
Code Relative to Declaration as to Certain Intersections  
 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 14-35, Amending Section 7-64.0 of the City Code Relative to 

Declaration as to Certain Intersections. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
During the Work Session on 25 August 2014 CM 14-27 was presented to Council relative to 
various traffic changes that were being studied and brought back to Council for further 
consideration.  The changes included changing Oak Street from a one-way traffic pattern to a 
two-way traffic pattern, changing a portion of Belle Street beside the US Post Office from a two-
way traffic pattern to a one-way traffic pattern and addressing the left hand turn onto South Park 
from Beckford Drive. 
 
The remaining change involves the intersection of Chestnut and Young Street.  A traffic accident 
at this intersection during the summer caused major damage to existing traffic signals and an 
estimate to replace the signals was $22,445.  Stop signs were installed at each corner of Young 
Street and this appears to be working well without any incidents.  The City hired VHB 
Consultants to perform a signal warrant study of this intersection and they have now completed 
the analysis. Based on the traffic volume, crash date collected, visit to the site and the technical 
analysis performed, there is no support for restoring signalization of this intersection from a 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
 
Council Meeting: 8 Dec 14 Regular Meeting 
 



CAF 14-92-B: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting: 27 October 2014 Work Session 
Page 2 of 4 

 

traffic volume warrant or traffic delay perspective.  It is recommended that crashes be monitored 
over a longer term to better compare with the time period while the signal was operational.   
As of December 1, the funds to pay for the damages to the signals are pending.   Once received a 
portion of the  anticipated amount of $13,977.79 will be used to fund final removal and clean-up 
of the existing traffic signal equipment. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
 1.  Ordinance 14-35 
 2. VHB Analysis Summary 
  
 
  
 
 
 
 



CAF 14-92-B: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting: 27 October 2014 Work Session 
Page 3 of 4 

 

ORDINANCE 14-35 
 

AMENDING SECTION 7-64.0 OF THE CITY CODE RELATIVE TO 
DECLARATION AS TO CERTAIN INTERSECTIONS FOR STOPS. 

 
The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 

 
Section 1.  That the following be added to Section 7-64.0 of the City Code (Declaration as to 
certain intersections):   
 

“Young Street” stop before entering Chestnut Street.  
 
 
The foregoing Ordinance 14-35, upon motion of Council member ____________ and 

seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call 
vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ____ 
day of _______________, 2014:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 
       ___________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 43, p. **. 
_______________________________________ 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA, CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do hereby 
certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 14-35 Amending Section 7-64.0 of 
the City Code Relative to Declaration as to Certain Intersections and Section 7-49.0 Declaration as to 
Certain Streets, adopted by the Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on **  ** 20** (See Minute 
Book 44, p. **.).  This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book # 9, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  ** 20**. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

CAF 14-92-B 
Attachment #1 



CAF 14-92-B: 8 December 2014 Council Meeting: 27 October 2014 Work Session 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 

 CAF 14-92-B 
 Attachment #2 



Meetings and Events Calendar 
All Regular City Council Meetings Held 2nd & 4th Monday at 6:00 P.M. 

Date Time Event Location 

Dec 11th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission  Aycock Recreation Center 

Dec 18th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Dec 22nd Meeting Cancelled 
City Council Meeting 

CANCELLED DUE TO HOLIDAYS Meeting Cancelled 

Dec 24th CITY HALL CLOSED 
FOR THE HOLIDAYS 

DEC 24TH 

 THRU 26TH 
 

 
MERRY 

CHRISTMAS 
TO ALL 

 
CITY HALL CLOSED FOR  

THE HOLIDAYS 
DEC 24TH – 26TH 

Dec 25th 

Dec 26th 

Jan 1st  CITY HALL CLOSED HAPPY NEW YEAR!!!!! CITY HALL CLOSED 

Jan 5th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

Jan 6th 3:30 PM 
Henderson Zoning Board of 

Adjustments City Council Chambers 

Jan 8th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission  Aycock Recreation Center 

Jan 12th 5:00 PM 
Perry Memorial Library 

 Board of Trustees  Perry Memorial Library 

Jan 12th  6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

Jan 13th 3:00 PM 
Henderson Community Appearance 

Commission City Council Chambers 

Jan 15th 7:00 PM  Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Jan 19th CITY HALL CLOSED 
Martin Luther King, Jr. 

 Birthday CITY HALL CLOSED 

Jan 26th 6:00 PM 
City Council Short Reg. Meeting 

Work Session to Immediately Follow City Council Chambers 

Jan 28th 
6:00 PM 

City Council Strategic Planning Retreat 
Dinner TBA 

Jan 29th  8:00 AM City Council Strategic Planning Retreat
Perry Memorial Library Farm 

Bureau Room 

Jan 30th 10:00 AM 
Henderson-Vance 911 Advisory Board 

Meeting E-911 Operations Center 

Feb 2nd 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board Meeting City Council Chambers 

Feb 3rd 3:30 PM 
Henderson Zoning Advisory Board 

Meeting City Council Chambers 

Feb 9th 9:30 AM KLRWS Advisory Board Meeting 
City Hall Large Conference 

Room 

Feb 9th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

Last Updated 3 December 2014 






















	Nov 24 Short and Work
	CAF 14-125 Authorizing 20 MGD Pilot Study at KLRWS O 14-07
	CAF 14-130 Adopting the KLRWS 2012 Local Water Supply Plan R 14-96
	CAF 14-127 Retirement of K-9 Diesel and transfer of ownershiip R 14-78
	CAF 14-129 Authorizing RFR for sale of Bank building R 14-95
	CAF 14-132 Authorizing the Mayor to sign revised Beckford Drive Widening Project agreement R 14-46
	CAF 14-131 Amending CH2MHill IBT contract and moving funds from contingency to engineering R 14-57 O 14-54
	CAF 14-92-B  Amending City Code regarding Intersection of Young & Chestnut O 14-35
	Meetings and Event Calendar
	#11 November 2014 HFD Report

